
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

April 5, 2023-5:30 P.M. 
 

FRANCIS J. McLAUGHLIN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 
 
1. Call to Order. 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Roll Call:  Quorum is Present - Meeting is in Session. 
 
4. Proclamations & Presentations.   
      
5. Approval of Minutes. 
 
6. Reading of Communications. 
 
7. Reports of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance Director, Chief of Police, 

Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent. 
 
8. Public questions from residents (or representative) related to the above referenced reports. Questions 

may be limited to three (3) minutes. 
 
9. Recognition of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council. 
 
10.  OLD BUSINESS 
  Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 

representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
 

 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

Note: After each item is placed on the table for action, public comments from residents (or 
representative) as to that business item are received.  May be limited to three (3) minutes per person 
and thirty (30) minutes total. 

 
A. An Ordinance Requesting Participation in Purchase Contracts of the State for Sodium 

Chloride (Road Salt) and Declaring an Emergency. 

 

Description: 

As part of the City of Canfield’s participation in Ohio Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) Winter Salt Contract for 2023-2024 we are required to pass legislation 

expressing our desire to participate in the program. The contract document binds us to 

purchase at least 90% of our requested number of tons for the contract year at the price 

that is awarded through the ODOT contract.  

 

This ordinance requests participation in the state of Ohio purchase of road salt for the 

contract year 2023-2024. This is being passed as an emergency due to the requirement to 

submit our commitment of salt purchase by May 1, 2023.  

 

 

Action Needed:  

Approval of Ordinance requesting participation the ODOT purchase contracts for the 

2023- 2024 contract Year.  

 

Attachment(s):  

Ordinance requesting participation in ODOT purchase contract for Road Salt.  

Public Comments 
 



Public Comments 

 

B. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with MS 

Consultants, Inc. in the form attached hereto for Professional Services related to the 2023 

Street Improvement Project.  

 

Description: 

This Ordinance is for the 2023 Street Improvement Project for engineering services. The 

scope of the services consists of design/bidding, construction/administration and inspection.  

As you recall the streets that this project encompasses are:  Millbrook, Greenmont and Sleepy 

Hollow, with an alternate bid for Fair Park driveway and parking area and Greasel Park 

driveway and parking area.   

 

Action Needed: 

Approval of Ordinance. 

 

Attachment(s): 

Ordinance and agreement with MS Consultants, Inc. 

 

 

Public Comments 

 

C. An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into An Agreement with MS 

Consultants, Inc in the form attached hereto for Engineering Services related to storm sewer 

infrastructure.   

 

Description:    This project is for final design drawings and specifications for the storm 

sewer improvements between Moreland Drive and Bradford Drive and along South Briarcliff 

Drive and Cardinal Drive to upsize approximately 440 Linear Feet of Storm Sewer to 24”. 

 

Action Needed: 

Approval of Ordinance.  

 

Attachment(s):   

The Ordinance and agreement with MS Consultants, Inc.  

 

Public Comments 

 

D. An Ordinance Declaring Surplus Property and Authorizing its Disposal.  

 

Description:  
When it is determined that certain vehicles or equipment are no longer useful to, or needed 

by the City, Council must declare the item(s) as surplus and authorize the disposal of the 

items.  

The ordinance being considered declares the following vehicle and equipment as surplus and 

authorizes their disposal by means of auction and trade-in:  

  

Pick-Up Truck 2011 Ford F-350 

Quality Trailer 2018 

 

Action Needed:  

Approval of Ordinance declaring surplus property and authorizing its disposal  

 

Attachment(s):  

Ordinance declaring surplus property and authorizing its disposal.  

. 

 

Public Comments. 

 

12. Council Comments. 

 
13. Adjournment 

 

 



Introduced By: _________________ 

First Reading: __________________ 

ORDINANCE 

AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING PARTICIPATION 

IN PURCHASE CONTRACTS OF THE STATE FOR 

SODIUM CHLORIDE (Road Salt) AND DECLARING 

  AN EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, Section 5513.01(B) of the Ohio Revised Code provides the opportunity 

for Municipal Corporations to participate in contracts of the Ohio Department of Transportation 

(ODOT) for the purchase of machinery, material, supplies, or other articles; and 

WHEREAS, Canfield City Council desires to participate in said purchasing program. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CANFIELD, OHIO: 

Section 1:  The City of Canfield requests authorization from ODOT to participate in 

the purchase contract for sodium chloride for 2023-2024. 

Section 2:  Upon authorization to participate in said purchasing program, the City of 

Canfield authorizes the City Manager to represent the City and execute all documents related to said 

Contract. 

Section 3:  The City of Canfield also agrees to the terms and conditions of the 

Contract authorized by the City Manager. 

Section 4: This Ordinance is hereby declared to be an emergency measure necessary 

for the preservation of public peace, health and safety of the inhabitants of the City of Canfield, 

Ohio. Said emergency exists by reason of the fact that the application deadline for State Purchasing 

is May 1, 2023. 

Section 5:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of 

this Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of 

the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield. 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS _______ DAY OF ____________________ A.D., 2023. 

___________________________ 

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 

ATTEST: 

_____________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 

Certification of Publication 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby 

certify that the foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal 

Building, Canfield, Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: 

___________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________. 

____________________________ 

CLERK OF COUNCIL 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________ 

MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 

 

 

 



Introduced by: ____________ 
First Reading: ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MS CONSULTANTS, INC.  
IN THE FORM ATTACHED HERETO FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

RELATED TO THE 2023 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield hereby desires to engage MS Consultants, Inc. for 
professional services related to the 2023 Street Improvement Project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, COUNTY OF 
MAHONING COUNTY, AND STATE OF OHIO: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter into the 
attached agreement with MS Consultants, Inc. for professional services described therein, 
for an amount not to exceed $38,984.00 (Thirty-Eight Thousand Nine-Hundred Eighty-Four 
and zero cents.  
 
Section 2:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were held in open meeting of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.   
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ___________DAY OF ____________________, 2023. 
 
   
 
      _________________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 

Certification of Publication 
 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: _____________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________. 
 
      __________________________ 
      CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 























































Introduced by: ____________ 
First Reading: ____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH MS CONSULTANTS, INC.  
IN THE FORM ATTACHED HERETO FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

RELATED TO STORM SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Canfield hereby desires to engage MS Consultants, Inc. with regards 
for project management for engineering services related to improvements to the existing 
storm sewer infrastructure between Moreland Drive and Bradford Drive and along South 
Briarcliff Drive and Cardinal Drive. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, COUNTY OF 
MAHONING COUNTY, AND STATE OF OHIO: 
 
Section 1:  That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter into the 
attached agreement with MS Consultants, Inc. for the provisions of certain services as 
described therein, for an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 (Fifteen Thousand Dollars and 
Zero Cents) to make improvements to storm sewer infrastructure. 
 
Section 2:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this Ordinance 
were held in open meeting of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised 
Code and Section 3.11 of the Charter of the Municipality of Canfield.   
 
PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ___________DAY OF ____________________, 2023. 
 
   
 
      _________________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 

Certification of Publication 
 

I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 
foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, 
Ohio for seven continuous days, to-wit: _____________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________. 
 
      __________________________ 
      CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY 



















Introduced by: ______________ 
First Reading: ________________ 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING SURPLUS PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZING ITS DISPOSAL 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has recommended that certain vehicle and equipment 
are no longer needed by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Council desires to declare the following vehicle and equipment surplus 
and dispose of it.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CANFIELD, OHIO: 
 
 Section 1:  The following vehicle and equipment are hereby declared surplus: 
   
   

VEHICLES/EQUIP VIN/SERIAL NUMBER YEAR MODEL 

Pick-Up Truck Vin#1FT7X3B64BEC34144 2011 Ford F-350 

Quality Trailer Vin # 550FA2022JS003069 2018  

 
 

Section 2:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to dispose of the listed vehicle and 
equipment in accordance with the applicable City of Canfield Ordinances. 
 
Section 3:  That this Ordinance and all deliberations relating to the passage of this 
Ordinance were held in open meetings of this Council, all pursuant to Section 121.22 
of the Ohio Revised Code and Section 3.11 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

PASSED IN COUNCIL THIS ________DAY OF ____________________A.D. 2023. 
 
      _______________________ 
      PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 

CERTIFICATION OF PUBLICATION 
 

 I, the undersigned Clerk of Council of the City of Canfield, Ohio, hereby certify that the 

foregoing Ordinance was posted in a prominent place at the Municipal Building, Canfield, Ohio for 

seven continuous days, to-wit: _______________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________. 

       ______________________ 
       CLERK OF COUNCIL 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 



_____________________ 
MUNICIPAL ATTORNEY  
  
 

 



1 
 

MINUTES 
CANFIELD CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
MARCH 15, 2023-5:30 P.M. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Mr. John Morvay, President of Council, followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. The Clerk called the roll to which a quorum responded as follows:  Mr. 
Dragish, Mr. Morvay, Mr. Nacarato and Mr. Neff.  
 
Absent: Mr. Tieche 
 
  Under PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS, there were none.  
 
  Under MINUTES, The Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 1, 2023 and the 
Budget Meeting on March 1, 2023 were approved as presented.  
 
  Under READING OF COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
MR. NEFF:  I have none.  
 
MR. DRAGISH:  I have none.  
 
MR. NACARATO:  I have none.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  I do have a couple.  I brought up last time about the East Palestine spill, the 
derailment.  At the Home and Garden Show, I was asking several people, these water filtration 
places, if they tested for any of these chemicals that spilled in East Palestine and they don’t.  
Doing some research, some of this stuff that they would test for, this vinyl chloride, butyl 
acetate, isopropylene, probably would be like a $3,000-$3,500 test.  I brought it up last time, I 
don’t know if it would be worth getting a baseline, where we’re at with our water today, similar 
to what we do with the copper test. Then, test in a year or so.  I do understand that we’re not in 
this water shed that is in danger.  We’re Meander.  I don’t know if it would be worth it or not.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I was talking with John and he’s going to reach out to Harry Johnson for 
another reason and he could talk to him.  John, I don’t want to put you on the spot but could 
we test our water supply at the point where we get it?   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  I can definitely have a conversation with Cardinal Labs and 
express what you just told us, as far as what you want tested.  I’m sure that the lab could send 
it out or do it in-house but I think that type of testing they would have to send it out to their 
labs.    
 



2 
 

MR. MORVAY:  Counselor, I don’t know if we can get in that with a contingent piece in their 
lawsuit against the railroad company, that if we do incur these costs, maybe we can get 
reimbursed.  I don’t know.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  I can look into that.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Okay.  I know Atty. Comstock for the Fire District, he is putting us in, like a 
contingent, in case we come up with-we’ve had our guys tested.  If something does arise, I 
know he’s putting together some kind of contingent contract, that we would be able to get into 
the lawsuit and get reimbursed.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  I’ll talk to Atty. Comstock.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Okay.  Mike brought this up tonight, I also noticed it but I never said anything, 
the sidewalks on South Broad Street, from the Fairground down to the Dairy Queen, both sides 
are pretty bad but the one side that’s really bad is the west side.  I don’t know if we have the 
homeowners address it. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Typically, it’s the homeowner is responsible for sidewalks, repair and 
maintenance.  
 
MR. MORVAY: I know that was a time that we got a grant to do sidewalks.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I think that was a school zone.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  You can also do the work and assess the property owners on a square foot 
frontage basis.   
 
MR. MORVAY: We maybe want to look at those because they are pretty bad.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Sure.  
 
MR. NEFF: There are a few around the Green as well.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  I think, lifted, uneven.   
 
MR. MORVAY:  Yes.  That’s all I had.  Chief any communications?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  If we get this budget passed, there is a mini excavator that would help us a 
lot.  Under Communication, we’ve just been working on the budget.  I have no announcements.  
We talked about this, this morning, well, Chris, Bruce and I did anyway, the Canfield High School 
Band Director is going to set a date in May when they’re going to do a free concert on the 
Green. He’s dealing with Patty now. We talked, I told him the city would endorse this.   
 



3 
 

CLERK: It’s actually May 22nd.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: May 22nd there will be a free band concert. They did it last year, they look to 
continue to do it. This is not a part of the Monday series of band concerts.   
 
CLERK: It will be from 6:30-8:00. 
 
MR. NEFF: What day of the week is that? 
 
CLERK: It’s a Monday.   
 
MR. MORVAY: We’ll move onto Reports. 
 
  Under REPORTS of Committees, Boards, Mayor’s Report, City Manager, Finance 
Director, Chief of Police, Zoning Inspector and Public Works Superintendent.  
 
MR. NEFF:  I did not bring my notes from Planning & Zoning. Mike would you be able to cover 
that?  
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: Yes.  
 
MR. NEFF:  Thank you. 
 
MR. DRAGISH:  I have my Mayor’s Monthly Statement to Council.  We received $670.01, 
collections to the city.  I also received a letter from the Arbor Day Foundation that we are again, 
once a part of the Tree City USA.  That’s a great thing to be a part of.  I literally just read it right 
now.  Thank you.  
 
MR. NACARATO:  Design Review met last week, we had one thing on our agenda and it was 
signage for the BP Station; which is now becoming Shell Station on Main Street.  Everything 
passed.  
 
MR. MORVAY:  I sit on the board for the Fire District.  We had 4 firefighters sent and have been 
tested by a physician to get a baseline on their general health, so we can have something to 
track later on.  These 4 firefighters were down in the zone when they ignited the one tanker.  As 
I said, Atty. Comstock is putting us into some contingent place in case we have to go back and 
get reimbursed for anything.  We also had the use of our truck, we lost 4 hoses in the process 
because of the contamination and some other items. We’re seeking reimbursement from 
Norfolk Railroad for about 8 or 9 thousand dollars.  In the meantime, we’ve hired two new full-
time firefighters.  We’ve hired 3 part-time firefighters.  We have one firefighter who has been 
with us for 45 years, Joe Morell.  He is going to retire April 1st.  If you know Joe or see him, 
thank him for his service. He’s been an excellent, excellent, firefighter/paramedic.  We wish Joe 
the best.  That’s all I have.  
 



4 
 

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT:  Public Works just recently completed, it was mentioned last 
meeting about the walls at Fair Park. We had a crew go in there over the past two days and 
painted the walls inside the building. The ceiling tiles, we pulled down a lot of stuff that was 
stuck, taped. We cleaned that up.  If we need to do a tile replacement, we’ll budget for it, next 
year, which we can do in-house.  We just need the material.  The painting alone, I think you 
have a meeting on Friday, it really brightened the place up.  We are continuing with our 
maintenance with the sanitary jetting, that will come to a close here soon. That crew will go on 
the brush pick-up.  That’s also a reminder that April 3rd, we will start in Zone 1; which is that 
north east section.  We’ll spend a whole week in zone 1.  All the zones get a week.  Crews are 
still collecting data for the GIS collections.  The new developments, we go in with our GIS 
Equipment and locate these service boxes, manholes, anything that’s a utility that we’re 
responsible for on those GIS Systems.  It takes a little time. We’re getting them in. But once 
they’re in, they’re in there.  The water meter change-outs, we’ve had a crew on that 5 days a 
week.  They’re coming along really good.  I have to compliment, Patty took over that job. She 
took over scheduling. The guys are excited, I’m excited. We have full schedules.  The residents 
are excited, she gets to talk to them.  Just doing a really great job and we appreciate that.   
 
MR. MORVAY: How far along are we in the project, John?  Percentage wise.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: We’re nearly done with this south zone; which consisted of 
800-900 meters.  Right now, we’re going to be working into the north east section.  We’re just 
getting started in there.  I don’t have a specific count at this time but we’re moving along really 
good, we have a full schedule every day.  We just got to keep at it.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Hopefully we can get meters.  
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: Right.  When you order them, you’re not getting them for 6 
to 8 months.   
 
MR. MORVAY: A very important person right now, our Finance Director, Mrs. Christine Clayton.  
I’ve been working on the budget and I’ll answer questions when we get there.   
 
ZONING INSPECTOR:  For the month of March, we issued 6 permits for a total valuation of 
$96,442.00.  Alexander Construction will be building a new home in Stonebridge.  Steve Cocca is 
partners with Steve Delucia, he is building 2 houses in Stonebridge and he will be going to Villa 
Theresa and building his next house, once he gets the Stonebridge house finished.  Next month 
you’re going to have a replat on your agenda from IES, they’re coming in to replat the parcel, 
they’re putting an addition on, they’d like to start in May.  At Planning & Zoning we set a public 
hearing for a conditional use permit for inside storage facility at 530 W. Main and an 
adjustment for more than one building on a lot.  That will be for next month’s agenda.   
 
MR. MORVAY:  Thank you. Our Clerk, Patty Bernat. 
 



5 
 

CLERK: Well, I had a report but everybody already said everything I was going to say.  (laughter). 
The only thing I can add is the Tree City Awards Program is April 26th in Cambridge, Ohio.  
 
MR. MORVAY: And you’re working on Concerts on the Green. 
 
CLERK:  Yes, I am.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief, you got many hats.   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  I do not have too much to report for many reasons.  The one thing that I do 
have to report, I’m still working together, I don’t want anyone to think we’ve forgotten about 
this important process in selecting our next city manager.  We’re on a timeline now and I’ll be 
getting the timeline to Council here soon.  We’re putting it together. The deadline is coming up 
on candidates and Council is going to be reviewing the top 15 candidates real soon.  There will 
be some skype interview and in-person finalist interviews.  According to the timeline, we should 
have a person selected by the end of May.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Great. 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: I’m happy about that. I think it’s promising and promising for the community.  
I’ll get more of that information out to you as time goes.  I really like their process. I like their 
system. They’re crossing all the T’s and dotting all the I’s, checking all the boxes.  Also, I brought 
up last week about the Aldi Project, I am still working as hard as I can, the Mayor and other to 
try and make this happen.  We are still waiting to hear back from Aldi.  In the meantime, we’re 
doing what we can do on the city front to try and fix some of the problems that we see holding 
back the project, such as Aldi.   
 
On the police front, the fitness assessment for the Civil Service. We are two full-time officers 
short.  We give a written test and then we give a physical fitness assessment test. Those who 
pass both, we merge and start doing interviews.  So, hopefully, we find some promising 
applicants out of that group.  That’s it.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  I have a few items.  We’re working through a variety of different 
ordinances, some of which are on the agenda tonight.  Some you’ll see over the next couple of 
months. The Charter Review Commission Meetings will start on Monday the 20th.  We’re 
starting that process and hope to wrap that up sometime in either June or July, so we can have 
some decisions made about whether we’ll propose amendments or not.  They have to be to the 
ballot by August. That’s it.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council, questions for these reports?  Hearing none. Residents?  
 
KATHRYN YOUNG:  Kathryn Young, 570 Barbcliff.  Just a couple things, with the testing you 
suggested for the water.  Is it drinking water?  Is it runoff water?   
 



6 
 

MR. MORVAY: Drinking.  I’m concerned about drinking water.  
 
KATHRYN YOUNG:  It’s also the runoff, that you can take right here at the high school.  There 
are other things in the water, that I believe, the EPA is going to be testing for like (inaudible). 
So, that’s coming.  Also, soil too.  The other question I had, Aldi’s going across from (potentially) 
Giant Eagle, is that correct?  
 
COLLECTIVELY:  Yes.  
 
KATHRYN YOUNG: When we had that big water issue, there was water that flowed right down 
into Giant Eagle and if Aldi’s takes that hill, is there some kind of study for the water that is 
going to be shooting off of that?   
 
COLLECTIVELY:  Yes, I’m sure.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: Actually, new development alleviates the problems. People think new 
development is responsible for a lot but it’s usually older areas that flood. In new 
developments, the requirements are so stringent, in terms of holding the water, retaining the 
water, detaining the water, it alleviates a lot of problems.  There will be vigorous testing.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Correct me if I’m wrong, but there is underground water storage at McDonald’s.  
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  McDonald’s and…. 
 
ZONING INSPECTOR: The Fire Station has it. 
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO:  There is a massive sanitary line that runs right under Giant Eagle.  It’s been 
there for decades.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Anybody else?  Hearing none.  
 
  Under RECOGNITION of Persons Desiring to Appear Before Council: 
 
MR. MICCHIA:  Good evening, Frank Micchia, 220 Glenview.  I had a question on the Cash Basis 
Fund Summary for 2023.  There is a column there called -Non-Expendable Corpus, what is that?    
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: It’s money we’re not allowed to spend.  (Laughter). 
 
MR. MICCHIA: It looks like we did a good job.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: We can only spend the interest. We can’t spend the actual money.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: There are only 2 items. One for $100,000 for Parks/Village General Trust Fund 
and another one for $15,000 for Fair Park Trust Fund. 



7 
 

 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: If you look further down, there is also one for the cemetery.  The permit 
fees we’re not allowed to spend. We can only spend the interest.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: I’m not seeing one for the cemetery.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: It’s Fund 4001. 
 
MR. MICCHIA: Anyway, I was just wondering what that meant. Corpus in Latin means body.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: We have to leave that money sitting there.  We can only spend the 
interest.  
 
MR. MICCHIA: When you go all the way to the end it shows a balance of $26,000 and $86,000. 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: That we can spend.   
 
MR. MICCHIA:  That we can spend.  I was just curious what that meant.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Thank you, Frank.  Mr. Wingard. 
 
MR. WINGARD:  Denny Wingard, 284 Jade Circle. I’m on the Facilities Committee for the schools 
as well as Anthony, Lex Calder, Dick Duffett and others.  A concern that is going to be coming up 
is the big building across the street, as well as the property. There are so many options that are 
being discussed.  We’ll have our 6th session coming Thursday, there will be 9 sessions.  In the 
past, there was some discussion about what to do with the building.  The current figure to tear 
that building down is… 
 
MR. MORVAY: Which building are we talking about?   
 
MR. WINGARD: The middle school.  1.73 million dollars.  That’s one of the buildings, we ‘re 
talking possibly about tearing down two other buildings.  I know the city had some type of 
agreement with the school district for that first round.  I wasn’t aware, until about 45 minutes 
ago that tentative agreement was, I talked to Dick Duffett back and forth.  
 
MR. MORVAY: But it’s all null now.  
 
MR. WINGARD: I understand that.  Something is going to have to be done in the next few 
weeks. 
 
MR. MORVAY: They’re not interested in any property out there now.  
 
MR. WINGARD: Here at this property.  
 



8 
 

MR. MORVAY: I know but it was a trade with Red Gate.   
 
MR. WINGARD:  Yes.  I’m curious if the city is going to be interested in that property, out here 
parking is going with the building.  
 
MR. MORVAY: We don’t know.  No plans.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: We had plans. We had an idea of what we wanted to do. But if we don’t have 
the property as a trade, the million dollars to cover the knock down, obviously we’re not going 
to cover it ourselves.  
 
MR. WINGARD: That was the old plan. The new plan, that is coming down the road, we’re trying 
to determine what is going to happen with the building. That is a possibility the building stays 
but it may not stay the same owner.  I was talking to Dick Duffett before I came over here and 
he said, it was a tentative plan between himself, Alex Gordan which is the past superintendent 
and the YMCA. I misunderstood what he was talking about until a few minutes ago.  They were 
under the understanding, pretty close to it, that the YMCA was going to build a west unit.   They 
wanted to build in Austintown and that fell through.  They wanted to build it on the boy scout 
camp before they built in Boardman. It fell through here and they built in Boardman.  They had 
a tentative agreement that the Y would build on this property and the new middle school would 
be built and there would be a win-win three different ways.  That’s news to myself.  
 
MR. MORVAY: That’s news to us too.   
 
MR. WINGARD: Here are some ideas that I came up with, with regard to that building, that I 
thought would be attractive.  I’m not certain where that’s going.  You can read through it at 
your leisure.  That’s it. Thank you.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Thank you.  Mr. McLain 
 
MR. MCLAIN:  Corey McLain, 369 E. Main Street.  I just want to give a story to Chuck, the Police 
Chief and Bruce Neff.  Last week, I arrived from Cleveland around midnight.  I got into Canfield 
at 1:30 in the morning.  As a Canfield resident for 8 years, the officers all know who drives what. 
They see your car probably 6 times a day.  They know my car and they know me.  I’m an 
advocate for police officers.  I stood up here last year about this RED Initiative that has 
Canfield’s name on it for whatever reason, I don’t know why.  I think it should be removed 
Bruce.  Canfield should not be associated with that RED Initiative.  That’s a side note.  I got 
pulled over.  The reason why I got pulled over was because I was swerving back and forth on 
the lines, like a drunk driver would. I was actually falling asleep at the wheel from Austintown 
to Canfield.  I thought I would wake up when I get closer to home and I didn’t.  My point is, the 
officer did the right thing. He knew I was a hometown person or I live here and he pulled me 
over anyway.  He did his job.  Regardless if I was a resident or not.  Police Officers get such a 
bad rap from outsiders who don’t know what Canfield is about.  Sometimes, some politicians 
(inaudible) with Canfield.  Our officers are good and I think they should keep doing their job.   



9 
 

 
CHIEF OF POLICE: Thank you.  
 
MR. MCLAIN: You’re welcome.   
 
MR. MORVAY: He might have saved your life.  
 
MR. MCLAIN: Exactly.   
 
MR. MORVAY: That’s all I have on the list. Is there anybody else?  Hearing none.  
 
  Under OLD BUSINESS, there is none.  
 
  Under  NEW BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM A:  An Ordinance Amending Canfield Codified Ordinance Section 1141.15. 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
MR. NEFF: Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Amending Canfield Codified Ordinance Section 
1141.15. This constitutes first reading.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Patty did you schedule a hearing.  
 
CLERK: April 19th at 5:00 pm. 
 
ITEM B:  An Ordinance Creating the Overbrook Stormwater Project Fund.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 



10 
 

   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH:  Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Creating the Overbrook Stormwater Project 
Fund.  I move for passage.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief can you give us a briefing on this Ordinance.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: In order to account for the grant award and the associated expenses related 
to the grant, the city must create a separate fund to segregate the revenue and expenses from 
our normal city operations.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions?  Hearing none.  Residents, questions?  Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ORDINANCE:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes.  
         Ordinance 2023-09 
 
ITEM C:  Annual Appropriation Ordinance to Make Appropriations for Current Expenses and 
other Expenditures of the City of Canfield, State of Ohio, During the Fiscal Year Ending 
December 31, 2023. 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading. 
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 



11 
 

   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. NACARATO: Mr. President, I have an Annual Appropriation Ordinance to Make 
Appropriations for Current Expenses and Other Expenditures of the City of Canfield, State of 
Ohio, during the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2023.  I move for passage.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief, this is our budget. Do you have anything to add?   
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: State law requires that municipalities adopt a fiscal year budget prior to 
March 31st each year.  At the December 21, 2022 Council Meeting an Ordinance was passed to 
approve a temporary appropriations expenditure for fiscal year 2023. City staff presented the 
annual capital requests for each department at a budget work session on March 1st. The annual 
appropriations in this ordinance include the items that were discussed during the budget work 
session. The ordinance adopts the final annual appropriations for the City of Canfield for the 
fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. 
 
MR. MORVAY: I had a discussion with our Finance Director, Christine Clayton and she was 
onboard with it.  I think we got most everything in that we looked at in that budget section.  It 
will be in a good financial situation at the end of the year.  Council any questions or concerns 
with the budget? Hearing none. Residents, any questions or concerns?  Hearing none.  
 
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2023-10. 
 
ITEM D:  An Ordinance Authorizing Change Order Number 3 for Kirila Contractors, Inc. 
(Bradford Dr. & Herbert Rd. Water Line Replacement).  



12 
 

MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading. 
 
MR. NACARATO:  Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
MR. NEFF:  Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Authorizing Change Order Number 3 for Kirila 
Contractors, Inc. (Bradford Dr. & Herbert Rd. Water Line Replacement).  I move for passage.  
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief, why are we passing this Ordinance and what does this change order 
entail?  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  The bottom line is, the total change order is $3,639.00.  The majority of this 
type of work do require change order.  We try and keep it to a minimal.  Everything within 
these additions and deductions makes complete sense to staff.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions?  Hearing none.  Residents, questions?  Hearing none.  
 
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:    4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2023-11. 
 
ITEM E:  An Ordinance Providing Transfers to Various Funds.  
 



13 
 

MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading. 
 
MR. NACARATO: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes   
         
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Providing Transfers to Various Funds. I move 
for passage.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Christine can you explain? 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Those particular funds don’t have enough money to cover the expenses 
that we approved. So, we need to transfer some money from the General Fund. It’s the only 
one that can transfer money to the other funds.   
 
MR. MORVAY: This aligns with our budget that we just passed.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: Correct.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions?   
 
MR. NEFF: This is for the pump track and Pickle Ball improvements and nets.   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Correct.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Residents, questions or concerns? 
 



14 
 

LEX CALDER: Lex Calder, 145 Willow Bend.  Thank you for the bike park, it’s awesome.  
 
MR. MORVAY: It hasn’t been voted on yet.   
 
LEX CALDER: The repaving for…… 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: What we decided to do with the repaving for both parks, they’re going to 
put it in the bid package for the city repaving.  We’ll do a budget adjustment at that time.  Then 
we’ll know the dollar amounts.  It’s going to be bid as an alternate to our regular paving 
program. Then we decide then whether we want to do it or not, or postpone it until next year.   
 
LEX CALDER: Thank you.  
 
KATHRYN YOUNG:  Kathryn Young, 570 Barbcliff.  Thank you, in advance.   
 
MR. KUBITZA:  Mike Kubitza, 262 Fairview.  In regards to repaving, somebody should be taking a 
look on Indian Lake between Hood and S. Broad Street. The devil strip between the sidewalk 
and the street.  There is about a two-foot section that is always mud.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Okay.  John you on that.   
 
PUBLIC WORKS SUPERINTENDENT: He’s correct, it is bad.  We probably won’t pursue that until 
after that waterline is installed.  If everything goes according to plan and we get that line 
replaced.  They’ll be right in that area.  
 
MR. MICCHIA:  Frank Micchia, 220 Glenview. Let me understand this, there is $109,500.00 what 
are we paving?   
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR: We’re not paving anything.  That’s for the operation of the parks and the 
bike track and Pickleball nets.   
 
MR. MICCHIA:  Okay, what about the pump track? 
 
COLLECTIVELY: That’s in there.  
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  They requested $50,000 for that.  That’s in there.  
 
MR. MICCHIA: That’s for paving.  
 
MR. MORVAY: No. We’re going to address the paving down the road.  It’s going to be … 
 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  We’ve been discussing paving the parking lots at both parks.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: This is going into the construction of the pump track? 



15 
 

 
FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Yes, $50,000.   
 
MR. MICCHIA: Fifty-Thousand is going into the construction. 
 
MR. MORVAY:  Yes.   
 
MR MICCHIA: That’s actually creating the waves.   
 
MR. NEFF: But there is a matching grant.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Lex got it all under control.    
 
MR. MICCHIA: We’re saying the pump track is ago? 
 
MR. NACARATO: We haven’t voted on it yet.   
 
ATTY. FORTUNATO: You’re on your bike.  
 
MR. MICCHIA: The pump track is ago, if we vote on it.  
 
COLLECTIVELY: Yes.   
 
MR. MORVAY: Anybody else?  Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2023-12. 
 
MR. MORVAY: The pump track is ago.   
 
ITEM F:  An Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into A Contract with MS 
Consultants, Inc. for Engineering Services Related to the Indian Lake Waterline Replacement 
Project and Declaring an Emergency.  
 
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of two readings of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize adoption of the same upon its first reading. 
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 



16 
 

   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes.  
 
MR. MORVAY: As per the provisions of Section 4.05 of the Charter of the City of Canfield, I 
move that Council dispense with the requirement of a full reading of the proposed Ordinance 
and authorize reading by title only.  
 
MR. NEFF: Second.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON MOTION:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Motion passes. 
 
MR. NACARATO:  Mr. President, I have an Ordinance Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into 
A Contract with MS Consultants, Inc. for Engineering Services Related to the Indian Lake 
Waterline Replacement Project and Declaring Said Ordinance an Emergency.  I move for 
passage.  
 
MR. DRAGISH: Second.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Chief can you explain this waterline replacement ordinance and why it’s an 
emergency.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE: The City intends to replace the waterline on Indian Lake Blvd. The engineer 
on the project is MS Consultants. The cost of the replacement shall not exceed $42,571.00. This 
Ordinance authorizes the City Manager to enter into a contract with MS Consultants for the 
Indian Lake Waterline Replacement Project.  
 
MR. MORVAY: This is for the engineering services, correct? 
 
CHIEF OF POLICE:  Yes.  
 
MR. MORVAY: Council questions?   
 
MR. MORVAY: This is a project that is absolutely necessary.  In the long run, it will save the city 
a lot of money because of the repairs that we’ve been doing on these waterlines.  Residents, 
questions?  Hearing none.  
 
   ROLL CALL ON ORDINANCE:   4 Votes-Yes   
         0 Votes-No   
         Ordinance passes  
         Ordinance 2023-13. 
 



17 
 

  Under COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
MR. NEFF:  I’d like to say, I think we had some good decisions down in Columbus to correct the 
malfeasance that is going on with the bribery situation with First Energy.  I applaud getting us 
back on track, so we don’t have a capitol that is for sale.   
 
MR. DRAGISH:  I’m looking forward to spring.  We’re getting into our last snowfall.  It always 
comes around St. Patrick’s Day.  I’m looking forward to Friday.  I wish everybody a Happy St. 
Patrick’s Day. Hopefully everybody stays safe on the roads.  Looking forward to spring and 
future development.   
 
MR. NACARATO:  I just want to say thanks to Lex and thanks to Denny for the two projects that 
they have in front of us, that we approved today for the parks. We live in such a great 
community. But our parks are very underutilized. I thank you very much for bringing those 
things forward. If anybody knows the need for some revamping of some things around here, it’s 
me.  Now that we have such a beautiful Green and with the things going on at the two parks, 
our community has a lot of offer our young people.  I thank you for all the work that you did on 
that.   
 
MR. DRAGISH: I just want to add to that.  We’ve always said, in the past, that we want people 
to come to council and bring things to us.  This is the perfect example of what we’re talking 
about.  It doesn’t help our city but it helps the community and everything else.  I commend you 
both for coming forward and making sure these things happen.   
 
MR. MORVAY:  If, I might add one thing, in November we have an election coming up.  There 
are 4 of us that are up.  I will term out this year, so this position is open.  So, are the other 3 
positions.  If people are inclined to run for council and serve your city, the pay isn’t that great, 
there are no benefits, but I’ve served for 12 years and it’s an honor and a privilege to do this.  
Hopefully, I’ve made a difference.  I can encourage new faces to enter the ring and come in and 
serve and give time to the community.  That’s what it’s about.  I’m hoping that you spread the 
word that we’re looking for candidates this year.  I’ll help whoever needs help with it and assist 
in whatever way I can.  That’s it. We are adjourned.  
 
 
       _________________________ 
       PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
CLERK OF COUNCIL  
 
 


	Agenda
	Salt Ordinance
	Ordinance Street Improvement
	Agreement for street improvement
	Ordinance Storm Sewer Infrastructure
	Agreement for storm sewer infrastructure 
	Ordinances Surplus Property
	Minutes 3-15-2023



